
Please ask for  Elaine Wilkes: Telephone (01362) 656354 
e-mail: elaine.wilkes@breckland.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - STANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date & Time - TUESDAY, 13 JANUARY, 2009 AT 10.00 am 

Venue - ATTLEBOROUGH TOWN HALL, QUEENS 
SQUARE, ATTLEBOROUGH 

 
 

 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 
working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, 

this will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 

Committee Members 
  
Mr. M. Eveling JP (Independent) 
Mrs. J. Jenkins (Independent)(Chairman) 
Mr. D. Myers (Breckland) 
Mrs. M. Oechsle JP (Parish) 

Mr. B. Rayner (Parish) 
Mr. G. Ridgway (Independent) 
Mr. F. Sharpe (Breckland) 
Mr. M. Whittley (Parish) 
Mr. D. Williams JP (Breckland) 
 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Friday, 2 January 2009  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Standards Committee 
13 January 2009 

 

 

 

PART APART APART APART A    

ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC    

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. MINUTES  1 - 4 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2008.  

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 
To receive apologies for absence. 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may have 
in any of the following items on the agenda.  The Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a 
personal or prejudicial interest. 
 

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting. 

 

6. COMPLAINT AGAINST COUNCILLOR DARREN RUSH, NEW 
BUCKENHAM PARISH COUNCIL  

5 - 69 

 
To consider the above case referred by the Standards Board for England.  
The following documents are attached: 
 
(a) Pre-Hearing Summary Checklist 
(b) Report of the Ethical Standards Officer  
 

 

7. CONSULTATION - CODES OF CONDUCT FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY 
MEMBERS AND EMPLOYEES  

70 - 72 

 
To note and/or comment on the attached response sent in respect of 
this Consultation Paper, firstly in regard to the Chapter 2 Questions 1 
to 12, and secondly some suggested revisions to the Code. 
 
This consultation paper is the latest in a series by the Department for 
Communities and Local Government on a number of policy 
commitments set out in the White Paper, Communities in control: Real 

 



Standards Committee 
13 January 2009 

 
 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

People, real power, and building on work still in progress from the 
2006 White Paper, Strong and Prosperous Communities. 
 
The paper invited views on proposals for revising the model code of 
conduct for local authority members, views on the clarification of the 
General Principles Order and comments on proposals to introduce a 
model code of conduct for local government employees.  Responses 
were required to be submitted by 24 December 2008. 
 
A copy of the consultation document can be viewed on 
http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/pdf/981962.pdf 

 

8. NEXT MEETING   

 
To note the date of the next meeting on 24th February 2009 at 2.15 p.m. in 
the Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham.  

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Held on Tuesday, 2 December 2008 at 2.15 pm in 
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mrs J. Jenkins (Chairman) 
Mr D.S. Myers 
Mrs M. Oechsle JP 
 

Mr B.D Rayner 
Mr G. Ridgway 
Mr M. Whittley 
 

 
Also Present  
Lady Fisher 
 

  
 

 
In Attendance  
Susan Allen - Standards Officer 
John Chinnery - Solicitor & Standards Consultant 
Elaine Wilkes - Senior Member Services Officer 

 
 
 Action By 

59/08 MINUTES  
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2008 were 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 

   

60/08 APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Messrs. M. Eveling, F. 
Sharpe and D. Williams.  

 

   

61/08 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING  
 

 Lady Fisher, Executive Member for Governance was in attendance.   

   

62/08 SCARNING PARISH COUNCIL - APPLICATION FOR 
DISPENSATION (AGENDA ITEM 6)  

 

 RESOLVED that a dispensation be granted until the end of 
May 2011 to Mr. John McSkimming of Scarning Parish Council 
to enable him to speak and vote on any matters relating to 
Former Highway Surveyor’s land at Daffy Green and the 
Scarning Fuel Allotment Charity.  

 

   

63/08 FEEDBACK FROM STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND 
ANNUAL CONFERENCE (AGENDA ITEM 7)  

 

 Mr. Ridgway reported on his attendance as a delegate at the recent 
annual conference of the Standards Board for England and stated 
that he felt it was an important element from the perspective of 
training.  He found it very helpful in the context of networking 
generally, as well as being informed of national issues and having 
the opportunity to attend workshops. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 1

1



Standards Committee 
2 December 2008 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

Mr. Ridgway said the conference had provided a more formal 
understanding of standards issues and the new regulations.  It had 
highlighted the narrow legal framework within which the Standards 
Board and standards committees operated and helped to illustrate 
the scope of committees in the maintenance of standards of 
conduct. 
 
Mr. Ridgway urged that all members of the committee should take 
turns in attending the annual conference. 
 
A particular point of interest, which had been noted at the last 
meeting, related to the issue of communications and raising the 
profile of the committee and its work.  In this regard, it was 
recognised that this was an ongoing area of work.  Mr. Ridgway had 
noted from the discussions at the conference that there were wide 
variances of activity between standards committees in the way they 
handled communications, whether good, bad or indifferent.  
Whatever was done, however, it was felt important to use 
appropriate media (newsletters, press articles, etc.) to foster good 
relations and a good understanding of the work of the standards 
committee amongst elected members, staff and the public.   
 
The Executive Member suggested that members could make use of 
the internal Members’ Information Bulletin to give feedback on 
conferences, seminars etc. attended, as well as the use of 
Newsletters and articles in Voice (which was already done).  
Members could also consider using a page on the website to give 
wider information and publicity.   In this connection, it was felt the 
publication of minutes of committee meetings on the website was an 
important element of this and it was felt that these were well 
received by the public. 

 
It was also felt important that the Council’s Marketing and 
Communications Officers were kept up to date and were well-briefed 
on standards activities and the regulations under which the 
committee operated.  The Standards Consultant confirmed that 
press releases were prepared jointly but he undertook to ensure 
they were briefed on the operation of the new regulations. 
 
On the question of attendance at future conferences, the Committee 
agreed that members should have the opportunity to take turns to 
attend and the Executive Member undertook to ensure a specific 
allocation to fund two places for this in future budgets. 
 
Confirmation was sought at the last meeting as to whether the work 
of the Standards Committee was included in the Council’s annual 
Governance Statement.  The Standards Consultant explained that 
the production of the Governance Statement included a series of 
self-assessment questions on various areas, including that of 
standards.  If all questions could be answered, then no specific 
mention was required to be made. 
 
In reply to the question raised at the last meeting about the 
relationship of the Committee with external partners and 
partnerships, the Standards Consultant advised that the Committee 
did not have any jurisdiction over external people or partnerships as 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John Chinnery  
 
 
 
 
Councillor Lady 
Fisher  

2



Standards Committee 
2 December 2008 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

such.  Breckland Council representatives on partnerships or other 
bodies would be required to operate under the Code of those 
bodies, if they had such; if not, then Breckland’s Code of Conduct 
would apply to the Breckland representatives but not to the other 
external members.  

   

64/08 MONITORING ROLE OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
(AGENDA ITEM 8)  

 

 At its last meeting, the Committee felt it would be helpful to give 
some thought to defining the term “monitor” in the role and function 
of the Committee.  This had arisen from the discussions on the 
amendments to the Council’s Constitution. 
 
By way of background, the Standards Consultant explained that the 
Local Government Act 2000 stated the functions of standards 
committees, as set out in the Council’s Constitution, included: 
 

§ Promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by 
councillors and co-opted members. 

§ Assisting the councillors and co-opted members to observe 
the Members’ Code of Conduct; 

§ Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 

§ Monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
Standards Board for England’s guidance was that standards 
committees needed to monitor how effectively councils were 
adhering to the Code, types of complaints etc., and that they might 
produce overview reports highlighting issues. 
 
The question was how this was interpreted and put into action. 
 
In discussing the issue, members concurred with the view of the 
Chairman that their attendance at other meetings of the Council was 
to gain as wide a knowledge and understanding as possible of what 
the Council did and how it operated at all levels.  It would be very 
disappointing if it was thought attendance was to see that people 
were not doing anything wrong, which was not the case.  
Furthermore, the members of the Committee were as equally bound 
by the Code of Conduct as other elected members and fully 
understood the responsibilities in matters of confidentiality. 
 
In answer to a point made that it could be argued that members of 
the committee might invalidate their role by being in attendance at 
meetings if a matter was subsequently to arise to be considered by 
them, the Standards Consultant advised that this was not the case.  
On the contrary, experience had shown that it was beneficial for 
members to have witnessed events and that it was valuable for non-
Breckland members to be knowledgeable of the various pressures 
on elected members at meetings. 
 
It was desirable that there should be a more co-operative attitude to 
and understanding of the role of standards committees and, as 
mentioned in the previous item, better communications on the 
operation and work of the committee would help to dispel any 

 

3



Standards Committee 
2 December 2008 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

misunderstandings.  The more co-opted members got to know and 
engaged with elected members could only assist in this.   
 
A member suggested the Committee should be seen as “a 
watchdog, not a bloodhound or lapdog”.   

   

65/08 STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND: INVESTIGATION 
REPORT - JANETTE HINES, BRIDGHAM PARISH COUNCIL 
(AGENDA ITEM 9)  

 

 The Standards Consultant explained the background to this matter 
and the report was noted.  

 

   

66/08 CONSTITUTION: CHANGE TO STANDING ORDER 43.6 
(AGENDA ITEM 10)  

 

 The Standards Consultant reported that, as requested at the last 
meeting, the Standards Board for England had been asked whether 
any other authorities had raised the question of the status of co-
opted members at meetings of a principal authority and whether the 
Board had issued any guidance on the matter.  A reply had been 
received that morning which was to say that the Board could not 
comment other than on matters in connection with the work and 
regulation of standards committees. 
 
In noting the change to Standing Order No. 43.6 from that originally 
considered by the Committee, a point was made that while this 
would be easier to operate, it nonetheless was contrary to the 
advice originally given by the Monitoring Officer. 
 
The position was noted.  

 

   

67/08 NEXT MEETING  
 

 The Committee was informed that the agenda for the next meeting 
would include the hearing of a matter referred by the Standards 
Board for England.  The Ethical Standards Officer dealing with the 
case had requested an earlier start time for the meeting to facilitate 
her attendance. 
 
In the circumstances, it was 
 
 RESOLVED that the next meeting on 13 January 2009 be held 

at the earlier time of 10.00 a.m., at a venue to be confirmed.  

 

   

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.07 pm 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

4



Agenda Item 6

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



BRECKLAND COUNCIL: Responses to Consultation 

Chapter 2: Code of conduct for local authority members  

Question 1 

 

Do you agree that the members’ code should apply to a member’s conduct when 
acting in their non-official capacity? 

RESPONSE: Yes, but only where the conduct has some bearing on the 
member’s role as a councillor and is sufficiently serious. 

Question 2 

 

Do you agree with this definition of ‘criminal offence’ for the purpose of the 
members’ code? If not, what other definition would you support, for instance should 
it include police cautions? Please give details. 

RESPONSE: We believe that the definition is set rather too widely: it should 
not catch very minor offences which do not relate to the member’s role as a 
councillor. Perhaps a threshold should be set, so that any offences where 
there is a fine of, say, less than £400 should not be included, unless they 
relate directly to the local government context. Cases where there is a 
conviction but no fine or only a caution should definitely not be included. 

Some individual comments on the above were: 

i) The overwhelming response to the SBE in earlier consultations on extending the 
Code to apply when acting in non-official capacity has been that councillors will 
inevitably be judged suitable for their position, or not, across the whole of their 
public activity, however remote it is from their council duties.  Levels of fines will 
include regional variations, depending on what is seen as a particular problem in 
the area (unless magisterial policy has changed significantly recently), and will need 
updating.  Level of seriousness and relevance best left to standards committees' 
judgement? 

ii) My concern is that the Code of Conduct should not decide/ decree what is minor 
or serious by the criteria of the punishment. 

iii) If you drive on a foreign licence and you are caught speeding, the police will not 
give a fixed penalty which would be the norm for 3 penalty points - you will go to 
court so the licence can go onto the DVLA data base.  This would therefore be 
caught in this part of the Code, if implemented,  - on the other hand you may get a 
fixed penalty for trying to intimidate a juror in a murder trial!  (Source - Judge 
Downes at the Magistrates AGM 08).  I would suggest that "criminal offence" be 
defined as any criminal offence for which the member has been convicted in a 
criminal court and receives a Community sentence. My view is that Fixed Penalties 
are inconsistent in policing terms (both locally and nationally) and should not be 
mentioned in the Code at all. 

Question 3 

 

Do you agree with this definition of ‘official capacity’ for the purpose of the 
members’ code? If not, what other definition would you support? Please give 
details. 

RESPONSE: Yes 

Question 4 

 

Do you agree that the members’ code should only apply where a criminal offence 
and conviction abroad would have been a criminal offence if committed in the UK? 

RESPONSE: No.  All serious offences committed abroad should be included. 

Question 5 

 

Do you agree that an ethical investigation should not proceed until the criminal 
process has been completed? 

RESPONSE: Yes- there does not seem to be a workable alternative, although 

Agenda Item 7

70



this does mean that the member is not suspended before conviction even 
where very serious charges are brought.  

Question 6 

 

Do you think that the amendments to the members’ code suggested in this chapter 
are required? Are there any other drafting amendments which would be helpful? If 
so, please could you provide details of your suggested amendments? 

RESPONSE: Yes, but see attached schedule for some suggested drafting 
amendments. 

Question 7 

 

Are there any aspects of conduct currently included in the members’ code that are 
not required? If so, please could you specify which aspects and the reasons why 
you hold this view? 

RESPONSE: No 

Question 8 

 

Are there any aspects of conduct in a member’s official capacity not specified in the 
members’ code that should be included? Please give details. 

RESPONSE: There is an argument for including political group meetings in 
the requirement to declare interests, even if a member is not required to leave 
the room, although monitoring this might be difficult. 

Question 9 

 

Does the proposed timescale of two months, during which a member must give an 
undertaking to observe the members’ code, starting from the date the authority 
adopts the code, provide members with sufficient time to undertake to observe the 
code? 

RESPONSE: Two months will be adequate for 99.5% of cases, but we can 
envisage cases, such as illness or where the member is out of the country, 
where it might catch members unnecessarily. One member suggested that it 
is simpler not to give a time, but to require the undertaking before the 
member acts as a councillor again after the new Code has been introduced. 

Question 
10 

 

Do you agree with the addition of this new general principle, applied specifically to 
conduct in a member’s non-official capacity? 

RESPONSE: Yes 

Question 
11  

 

Do you agree with this broad definition of ‘criminal offence’ for the purpose of the 
General Principles Order? Or do you consider that ‘criminal offence’ should be 
defined differently?  

RESPONSE: Yes, although an alternative definition would be conduct which 
is likely to constitute a criminal offence. 

Question 
12 

 

Do you agree with this definition of ‘official capacity’ for the purpose of the General 
Principles Order?  

RESPONSE: Yes  

 

(This response does not include comments on the  Model Code for Employees) 

 

 

71



BRECKLAND COUNCIL:  
PROPOSED REVISIONS TO CODE OF CONDUCT FOR COUNCILLORS 

 
 
1. Para 9(2) is confusing to members, who find it difficult enough to try to work out whether 
they have to declare any interest where they are “dual-hatted”, for example as District and 
County or District and Town/Parish councillors. 
 
2. Re-word para 10: 
 
10(1)    Subject to sub-paragraph (2), you have a prejudicial interest in any business of 
your authority where: 
 
(a) you have a personal interest; and 
 
(b) the business affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body 
described in para 8 and/or relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, 
permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body described in para 8; and 
 
(c) the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts 
would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the 
public interest. 
 
3. Consider new wording to simplify 10(1) (c) above , for example: 
 
“Your interest is so significant that you could reasonably be regarded  as likely to be biased 
in your judgement of the public interest” 
 
4. Consideration should be given to the anomaly which can arise in the use of para 12(2). 
Where two or more members have prejudicial interests in a matter (in one case a husband 
and wife) and one is going to use 12(2) to speak, he can stay in the meeting and hear all of 
the business on that item  up to the part in the public speaking arrangements for him to 
speak, while the other has to leave at the commencement of the item. 
 
5. Also under para 12(2), authorities operate the speaking power differently: some say that 
the member is speaking under the public speaking arrangements (thereby being limited 
usually to three or five minutes), while others take it that 12(2) removes the incapacity of 
the member who can then speak under normal standing orders (ie often not time-limited) 
giving a distinctly greater opportunity for “persuasion”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS Chinnery 
Breckland Council 
December 2008  

72


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Complaint against Councillor Darren Rush, New Buckenham Parish Council
	7 Consultation - Codes of Conduct for Local Authority Members and Employees
	Revisions to Code Dec 08


